m%%m@%m%%%w%ﬁ%%ﬂ@%ﬁ@%@%%@@@%ﬁ@%ﬂ@%ﬂa
o= _ 2
N S 2
R T <
W T
1 L D
M = D
o= =
=
a <
| ¥
W =2 2
N < <«
i 2 T
14 = A
N oz <
t HVM
N O &5
m 2
VES
o



> DRSS

MATHEMATICS

Important instructions:

The following activity is to be done on A4 size sheet for Internal assessment for
Half Yearly Examination.

Q1. Activity: Write down the birth rate of Andhra Pradesh and Punjab of five
years (1991 to 1995). Make a double bar graph to represent this data.

2. Do examples of ch.1(Integers)

Ch 2 (Fractions and decimals).

PUNJABI
32- &< fent fonrags anft feg fed |

1. ‘AT Urg "By fod | Arg miye mrsT- et fae AT dyer widter & fen 3 fea Ugr fed |

2. Art Integrated:-Paste pictures of any Five famous food items of Punjab and
Andhra Pradesh on A-4 size sheet. Also write a paragraph on anyone.

DIVINITY
» R Tg I M HIST 9 ( II9H Afge fed ) we ad |

SCIENCE

Compare the weather and climate of Punjab and Andhra Pradesh.
OR

Compare the different types of fabric in Andhra Pradesh and Punjab.

(TO BE DONE IN SCIENCE NOTEBOOK)

Learn Chapter 7 and practice Numericals of Ch 10.
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SOCIAL SCIENCE

Do the following activity on pairing on the two states of India- PUNJAB and
ANDHRA PRADESH in scrapbook or A-4 size sheets in the following format.

1. Locate and label the states (Punjab and Andhra Pradesh) and their capitals
on the political map of India.

2. Paste or Draw relevant pictures about the flora and fauna, food and dances
of both the states (Punjab and Andhra Pradesh).

HINDI

T 1)1 24t T aTea e | ATaT Ral TISHTAT & 918 7 T 7 il SACH P TH o7 T¥TH H:1 F
THE HATEd ratater (Activity) STaw § FhTcHE G & Aged 98 U Afoga orar|

T 2) ATATATA o Hehdl o AL K T9AT 37T T il ATq=1 Hl HaTE % &9 § o’ | (T 918-25)

757 3)

Write S pages of calligraphy (ger) in a small note book.

T5T 4) 3T Teal o (o0 U 9rsa(1-25) forar| (=T Page no 90)

GENERAL KNOWLEDGE

1. Read English newspaper every day.
2. Write two current affairs every day for fifteen days on a notebook.

MUSIC

1. Singing practice of Alankaars and Gurbani Shabads done in music classes.
2. Prepare any one Punjabi folk song: -
(like Tappe, Chhala, Bollian, Mirza, Heer, Suhag. Ghorrian and Rati)

Singer artists for girls - Surinder Kaur, Gurmeet Bawa, Parkash Kaur and
Ranjeet Kaur.
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Singer artists for boys - Gurdas Mann, Manmohan Varis, Alam Lohar and
Satinder Sartaj.

3.Prepare one decent Bollywood song of 1980’s sung by these artists-
Mohamad Rafi, Mukesh, Kishore Kumar, Lata Mangeshkar and Asha Bhosle.

4. Practice of National Anthem.

ART

1. Make one Object by using waste material.

2. Make poster on the topic "Benefits of Yoga" on A2 size ivory sheet.

COMPUTER SCIENCE

Number
. Mention and explain the types of Number Systems Systems 123

on an A4 chart. 4 5 6

7890

. Draw a well labeled diagram showing all the elements
of formulas on an A4 chart. (Refer to book Pg No 16)

3. Answer the following questions based on Chapter “Formulas and Functions” on

an A4 chart:
i. ~ Which button can you click to add up a series of numbers?
ii.  Which function gets the biggest value of a range of cells?

iii.  Which text function joins the text from two or more cells?

iv.  What is another name for a prewritten formula already built into Excel?
v. I am a combination of numbers and symbols used to express a

calculation. I always begin with an = sign. What am I?
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Summer vacations are meant for fun and full of enjoyment with family and
friends. It's time for children to play, enjoy, relax and re - energize.

Activities:
Prepare dance on any Bollywood dancing number.
Prepare any Punjabi folk dance.

ENGLISH

Note: Do Q1 and Q2 in English Practice Notebook.

1. Your school is organizing an educational tour to Andhra Pradesh. As a Head
Boy/Head Girl, write a notice informing the students about it in about 50
words. Give all necessary details.

2. Do Practice Assignment. (Write only answers)

3. Read the PDF of Novel Gulliver’s Travels by Jonathan Swift




>
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CIY& ASSESSMENT PAPER — 1

SECTION A - READING (25 Marks)

Read the following poem carefully
MY PLAYMATE
I have an eutdoor plavimate

Whe's as jolly us can b
Sometimes I'm sure he's hiding

Upin our apple tree
For green leaves nod and rustle

And seem to wave at me.
Inthe springtime when we're playing,

Heis sovery spry
He eatehes up my paper kite

And carries it up high
Above the tops of houses

With their chimneysin the sky.
He often blows and whistles

For me to come outside,
Then when I'm on my seooter

He pushes while | ride -
And vet I've never seen him

Though I've tried and tried and tried.
Mabel Mipdermeyar

Choose the correct option for each of the following statements
fa) The poet thinks his playmate is hiding

() inhishouse
fit}  inhisgarden {ivd) inachimney

fb) Which of the following describes the playmate's character?
firt)  unhappy

firt)  in anapple tres

fi)  destructive

(it} restless fiv)  playful
fed Which of the following deseribes the sound that the leaves malkop?
{1} nod (L) spry

(1i) rustle fiv) blow

I.‘.-tglish T

(10 Marks)

(8 Marks)
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fd) Why does the poeg!
1)

s playmage
o cateh the poct's kit

i)  totell the poet Lo

ofton hlow el whistlo?

MEL totalk Lo { by [

EOTIE oyl nl'hj,.; i'm” B fi)  toridet his Fllh-t'.-i BCOULEE

What did the poet try to do but was nat SUCCess
) ride scooter

(i) fly kites

fel ful?

(M plony in springeEtime
ftd gee his playmate
The poet hasnot been able to 500 his playmate hscause

il heisinvisible

(n

f1ie)  he keeps his face alwavs covered
i) heis above the clouds vl heis hidden in a chimney

{g) Which of the following options lists i he activities the poet's playmate helps him to do?

1 Ruffle apple tree leaves 4 Became invisibile
Z.  Goupthe chimneys 5 Fly kites

3. Rideascooter 6.  Blow and whistie
(ft Options 1 and 5 fiii} Options 3 und 5
(i) Options 2and 3 {fv)  Options 4 and 6

fh) The word 'spry’ as used in the poem means which of the following?
(i)  sweetand innocent el lively and energetic

fil)  cunning and wicked ffed . lnzy and lethargic
Who do you think is the poet's playmate? Give reasons to support your answer. (2 Marks)

Read the following passage carefully. (15 Marks)

ONCE UPONATIME |
Ten-year-old Ziauddin, studying at Jamia Millia Islamia School, loves 1o hear and 14IL tell stories,
But hetween his studies, his friends and his hectic lifestyle, he hasn't found mueh time for them
S0 it came as a pleasant surprise when he and his classmates heard storvteller
::!_::IE"’; Kaur read and enact the story, "The Magical Web Bridge” at Jamin's Foundation Week
_ awork of fiction, set in the natural world.
With the help of props like a weaver bird, a spider, a tree and a nest, Hm?ramt hu]ji the 5iul:|.f.'.ﬂlﬁ
Wﬂ_‘ narrating Il_hu story of a Baya (weaver) bird who is imagi I!IH.I.TI".I'E-,. ereative and ﬁ.‘l..'_tl"r'l"'.
He not only builds a nest to woo his mate, but crosses geographica] boundaries by constructing s
nest se long it leads him to another country.
When azked most children said that they recalled seeing the bird on their campus, but eouldn't
l'm‘?ﬂfﬂﬂﬁhﬂpﬂ. colour or sizge. Immediately after the workshop, some children rushed to see
the baya and the nest. They started studying its behaviour and asking questions,

The workshop was organised by "Katha' under their new initiative, Katha's Storytellers Unlimited



{n

i

Enjﬂld‘l f

(SUTNL SUIN i= made up of people with a passion for reading, who believe strongly that all children
should grow up with lap-time stories and books. They should be given time once a week to raiss
swareness in their neighbourhood, and encourage others to enjoy stories and reading.

The story teaches children valuable lessons about coaporation and en vironmental awareness
birds and trees work in tandem, and if we don't start seriously thinking about the nat ural world,
it maght soon only remain in stories and pictures,

Delighted with the children's response, Jamia's librarian, Dr. Anisa Khan snid, "Getting the
children to read a story is tricky business, so we try to capture their imagination and make
reading fun by having storyvtelling sessions. This way they absorb the story better.” She adds,

“We don't want children to be just bookworms but have an oll round knowledge of things. We
want to bronden their horizons.”

The Hind e
On the basis of your reading of the pas sage, complete the following statements as briefly as possibie
Write the answers in your answer shests against the correct blank number (10 Marks)

fa) Zinuddin hardly finds any time to hear and tell stories because ...

b} Four props that Harpreet uses to nirrate the storvofthe baya bird are: (i) (6., (i), (iv).,..

fcl The story of the baya stimulated the curiosity of the children. Find and list two pieces of
evidence in support of this view (2 Mearkas

fd) Akey belief that the members of Katha's Storytellers Unlimited (SUN) have is

e/ Katha's Stortellers Unlimited (SUN) expects children to promote stories and reading by
{f1 Themalebayabuildsanestto.. ...
(g} Hwedon't preserve nature then itwill soon ...

{h} The story of the baya gives an important lessonon ... and ...

(i) According to Dr. Anisa Khan, storytelling sessions help to ... of children -.n’

mqu.uﬁuurm-mmhlrdmuldmuhamdndnpmpmw

12 Marksy)
Look at paragraph 2 (1 Mark)
Find and copy one word that means the same as “small objects uped by actors during the
performance ofa play ete.”.
Lookat paragraph 5. {1 Mark)
Find and copy oneword that means the same as “alongside cach other",

e ey Rl e v Bt (P b 6)

What does 'absort' mean in this sentence? (1 Markj

fa) narrate fe) understand
(b read fd) remember
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SECTION B - WRITING

An on-the- inti ition i i
= spot painting competition is being organised in vour school nex week unds
uspices of Art and Painting Club. You being the

asked by the Principal 1o write a notice inviting stu
fabulous .

i Lhe
OrgAanising secretary of the Club, have been
dents to take part in the competition and win

prizes. The competition has been divided in three groups — classes 1 to [V, ol;
V11l and classes IX to X171,

iZses VLo
Write the notice in about 50 words and putitin a box (4 Marks)

Cor i Eori
poral punishment in schools these days has almost been banned. No one likes it. But =till it

becomes n i ;
eeessary sometimes, A fow days ago vou became a victim of it. Why? How did vou fieel

afterw 1 R . e : :
ards? Did you curse the teacher for punishing vou or did you feel otherwize? Write the

answers to these questions in the form of 5 diary entry in about 80-100 waords, {4 Mtk
The following news-item was reported in "The Tribune” few days ago {6 Marks)
ONE KILLED IN AN ACCIDENT

Chandigarh, April 4 - A tesnaged boy was killed and three others
injured when & speeding bus hit a rickshaw on the main rosd in

Sector 27 today,
e o Sl

Suppose you are Gaulam, a student of Class VII of Tagore Bal Niketan, Chandigarh. After
reading the above news you decide to write an article on the mensce of reckloss drivi ng for vour
school magazine.

Write the article in about 120 words suggesting ways and means to check this evil. Give vour
article a suitable heading. You can take help from the given hints.

w reckless driving - a common featre

« precious ives fog)

w ATENGES not b deive

+ guilty to ba punished

» Dby traffic signaks, wear helmed, wear seat balt,

dan't drive rash, don't play on roads, don't encroach

roads, don’t drink and drive

« meed to create awsreness #nd oducate poople about
road safety

» police authorrties 1o be mare vigant

Choose the best word from the options given to complete the following passage. (¥« & = 3 Magks)
T 7 T —— noise in our cities is proving dangerous {hi erireceieeienn. human health and

1ded stress on the already strained nerves (d) ............ the modern
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: i wenses (7 .
man. It is a fact that noise pollution is the (¢) .............. single factor causing diseases (f

depresgion, headache, heart disease and respiratory disorders.

lal il grow il growing fi)  rown s g
) il amang B W (i) 10 L. S
el M a il an il the .2
i) on i in i) off v} of
e oreatest il greater fiil  great fivl greatly
W by il as il since vl ke
T Readthe following conversation and fillin the blanks by choosing the most appropriate options
(4 Marks
INTERVIEWER - Why do you want to become a teacher? ‘1
CANDIDATE  : Teachingis a noble profession. Moreover, I like tenching very much.
INTERVIEWER : {ﬂ.l' ol
CANDIDATE . Heisadoctor, sir?
INTERVIEWER A:im'tcrralwn:.-::likm:hiamnlnhemmuadmrur.r'hﬂ ................................... ?
CANDIDATE :  No, Sir. He has left evervthi ng to me,
CANDIDATE : No, Sir. T have never worked 5s a teacher before.
CANDIDATE = Yes, sir. [ can join within two days.
fal 6 Whats your father daing (el What doms your father do
{iil What has your father done fivl  What will your fathge do
{b) il Doesn'the wish you to be & doctor 0l Does hewant you to be a tancher
fi} lsn't ha wishing you to be & doctor Il bs he wanting you to be a teacher “
fe} i) Inwhichschool you are teaching bl Hod you warked as a toacher before
il Where are you teaching vl Have you worked a5 a teacher befars
(dl (@ Youmus? joinimmediately (i Were yuunot joining immadiately
fii} - Con you join immudiately vl Hawe yous been joining imunediary
8. Look at the following words and phrases below. Rearrange them to form mesningful sentences
Write the correct answers in your answer sheets against the correct blank number (3 MarkdF

fa) situations/that are difficult/are actually / problems / to deal with
(bj at home, in echool, / people around us / we keep on / in dealing with / and ay work / facing
problems
fe) aredifforent from/ in the classroom /life problems / students face / the ones
 The following passage has not been edited. There is an &mror in each of the lines against ...,,.mﬂ..,l'.:
9. Llankis given. Write the Incorrect word and the correction i your answer sheet #gaist the correct
hlank ﬂumhr (VixGs= 3 Marks)
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10,

11.

December 21 is winter solstice. [t is that time on fal

the year when on noon the sun nppears at ) .

it's lowest altitude above the horizon V-1 R A

Inthe northern hemisphere it is call ) i

the southern solstice as this is then the sun (] o iiisimsanrtiiassisimeririsasasserian
is at its southern more point in the sky. £ il AR

In the passage given below, one word has been omitted in each line. Write the missing word along
with the word that comes before and the word that cames after it in your answer shegts against th=

coffect blank number, Ensure that the sword that forms your pnswer is undeilined. [ = b 3 Marks)

After finishing high school, Ramanujam a seholarship B i
tostudy a college, But in college, he was so B e e e e tie P
involved in bis mathematical study he failed Rl e e B F Lo 2 A L oo
in all subjects other Maths. Because ofthis Bl e iy o A R
he to forgo hiz scholarship. As his family could not UL e e
afford pay his college fee, he had to discontinue college. b DR A R R RS,
Answer the following questions by selecting the most appropriate option for each (4 Marks]

fa)  Itistrueifbess goextinet, 80 ... humans.

il may fiill  waill
zan fivt  shoukd
(B oriiesrsoneanes thart somie species of plants depend on dew for their survival.
fif  Have you kmown il Do younmw
lii}  Are you knowang fvl  Did you know
fe) ‘The little boy wasthrilled atthe ................of the chocolate bar.
fiy site i cite
liiy sight i) sice

fedi Whlnhupﬂnnﬂhnwulhnmﬂdungcnfmmﬂnwmgmpmmmim?
The Green Howse has won the Skating Competition.
G ThaSkating Cempetition was won by the Green House.
fill - The Skating Compstition haw been won by the Green House.
fiiil Tha Skating Competition has bean won by the Green Howse.
fiv) Tha Skating Compatition had been won by the Green House.
Qda
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1 Man-Mountain
Visits Lilliput

I, Lemuel Gulliver, was born the third of five
sons. My humble father had a small estate in
Nottinghamshire, England. The family did not have
a lot of money. Still, I was lucky enough to study
medicine in London.

When my studies were finished, I worked as a
doctor on a ship called the Swallow. We sailed for
three and a half years. After this voyage, I settled
in London. I married a woman named Mary Burton
and began to practice medicine.

Unfortunately, my business did poorly, so I went
to sea again—this time for six years.

We set out on a ship called the Antelope on
May 4, 1699, bound for the East Indies. The voyage
began well, but we soon ran into bad weather. We
were hit by a violent storm that lasted several days.
Finally, the Antelope was split upon a rock. Some
of us were able to escape on a small boat, but the
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wind overturned it. Then I was at the mercy of the
waves. What became of my companions I could not
tell. But I swam as far as I was able. When I was
almost gone, I stretched out my legs and felt the
bottom under my feet. I walked to the shore, lay
down in the soft grass, and fell into a deep sleep.

When I woke up, I could not move at all. Thin
lines stretched all across my body! I felt something
move along my left leg. Then I felt it run up to my
chest. It was a human-looking creature—no more
than six inches high! I could feel about 40 more of
the tiny creatures running just behind him along
my body. I let out a loud cry, and they ran back in
fear. Afterward I was told that some of them were
hurt when they leaped off me.

I struggled against the lines that held me. At
last I pulled my hand loose and tried to grab some
of them. But immediately, I felt a hundred sharp
little arrows strike my hands and face. They felt like
so many needles. After this I lay quietly and the
shower of arrows stopped falling.

For about an hour, I heard pounding by my left
ear. I turned my head just enough to see the little
people building a kind of platform. An important-
looking person climbed up on it and spoke to me.
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Unfortunately, I understood not one word. I made
signals to show that I was hungry. He seemed to
understand my signals very well.

Ladders were placed at my sides. More than 100
tiny people then brought me baskets full of meat
and bread. They also gave me a small barrel of wine
that was almost too heavy for them to carry. I drank
it in one gulp, and then drank a second one. They
were amazed at my appetite. When I finished, they
shouted for joy, and danced on my chest.

A royal-looking person marched up my chest.
He made signals to communicate that I must be
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taken to another spot. I let him know that I wanted
to be set free, but he shook his head. He made signs
that I would have more to eat and be treated well.
Once more, I thought of trying to break free. But I
still felt the sting of their needle-like arrows. Also,
I felt that I must be hospitable to these people.
After all, they had been very generous.

I began to feel sleepy, even though I had slept
for many hours. Later I learned that a sleeping
potion had been put into my wine.

As soon as I was asleep, the people set about
building an enormous wagon. They raised me up
with lines and slung me onto it. Some 1,500 of their
tiny horses then pulled me all the way to the capital
city. There I was laid down in an ancient temple. I
was not free, however. My left leg was bound with
91 tiny but very strong chains.

Once I was placed in the temple, I was paid a
visit by the Emperor. The little fellow said he was
28 years old. He had an arched nose and olive
skin, and he was taller than most of his people. He
walked with an air of majesty, and he wore a helmet
of gold, decorated with jewels. He held his sword
in one hand, in case I happened to break loose. I
spoke to him in all the languages I knew, but he
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could understand none of them.

After two hours, the Emperor took his leave.
He left me well guarded, with his colonel in charge.
This was for protection against the crowds who had
gathered to see me. In spite of this, several of them
shot arrows at me. One arrow nearly struck my eye.
The colonel captured six of the troublemakers and
tied them up. He brought them to me, indicating
that I should punish them as I wished.

I put five of them in my coat pocket. The sixth
I moved toward my mouth as if I would eat him
alive. The poor man cried out terribly. Even the
colonel seemed afraid when I took out my knife.
But I soon put them at their ease. I cut the strings
that bound all six of them, and I let them run away.
Both the soldiers and the crowd seemed to be
impressed by my mercy.

They had many arguments about what to do
with me. Some of them were afraid I would
break loose. Others feared my diet might be too
expensive, and could even cause a famine. One idea
was to shoot me with poisoned arrows and let me
die. But they were afraid of the smell that would
come from such a large carcass. And they thought
my rotting body might cause a plague!



Man-Mountain Visits Lilliput « 1

But then the news of my kindness toward the
six criminals reached the Emperor. He decided to
take care of me. He ordered the villages around
the city to supply me with food. The villagers who
helped me would be paid from his treasury. Also,
some 600 of these small people would be my
servants from now on. A team of 300 tailors would
make me a new suit of clothes. Six of the best
teachers would teach me their language.

In three weeks, I had learned much of their
language. The Emperor often came to talk to me.
As soon as I was able, I asked for my freedom. His
answer, as far as I could tell, was that I must wait.
Meanwhile, he told his officers to search my
belongings for any hidden weapons. He hoped that
this act would not offend me.

What could I do but agree? So two gentlemen
searched my clothes. “On the Great Man-Mountain
we found several articles,” their report said. “First
was a great piece of cloth and a huge silver chest.
Inside the chest was a sort of dust which made us
sneeze. We also found a bundle of thin white
material marked with black figures. We believe
these are letters. Then there was a long piece of
wood with twenty poles attached to it. We believe
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the Man-Mountain uses this device to smooth out
the hair on his head.

“We also found two dangerous-looking plates
of steel. One of these the Man-Mountain uses to
cut his beard. The other is for cutting his meat. At
the end of a chain we discovered a kind of globe.
It was half silver, with figures of some kind drawn
on it. It made a constant clicking noise. The Man-
Mountain said he looked at the thing often. It
pointed out the time for every action in his life.”

When the search was finished, the Emperor
asked to see my sword and my pistols. He called
them hollow iron pillars. I showed him both. Then,
after telling him not to be afraid, I shot off my pistol
into the air. The sound terrified the crowd that was
standing around watching. Hundreds of people fell
to the ground in shock and lay there as if they were
dead. Even the Emperor was shaken for some time.

I gave my sword and pistols to the Emperor. He
promised to return them whenever I left the
country. My handkerchief, snuff box, journal, comb,
razor, knife, and watch were returned to me.

10



2 Attack on
Blefuscu

The Emperor was pleased with my good
behavior. I began to hope that I might soon be set
free. I did everything I could to encourage him.

The people gradually began to lose their fear
of me. Sometimes I would lie down and let five or
six of them dance upon my hand. At other times
boys and girls would play hide and seek in my hair.

One day the Emperor entertained me with
several shows. The most interesting one was rope
dancing, which was done on a high, thin thread. I
learned that rope dancing was performed by men
who wanted a certain political office. Whoever was
able to dance the longest on the highest rope won
the office. Rope dancing often led to accidents,
though. I myself have seen several men break an
arm or leg.

In another show, men tried to crawl under a
stick or jump over it. The Emperor or one of his

11



GuULLIVER'S TRAVELS

men held a stick. To make the task more difficult,
the stick was often moved. Whoever turned out to
be best at jumping and ducking was given a blue
thread. He then became a favorite of the Emperor.
A red thread was given to the second best, and a
green thread was awarded to the third.

The Emperor was most pleased with my
cooperation. He suggested to his cabinet that I be
given some freedom at last. Here are the rules they
decided upon:

Goblasto Momaren Evlame Gurdilo Shefin
Mully Ully Gue, the mighty Emperor of Lilliput,
has made the following agreement with the
Man-Mountain:

First, the Man-Mountain shall not leave
Lilliput.

Second, he shall not come into our city
unless everyone has two hours warning to stay
inside.

Third, the Man-Mountain shall only
walk on large roads. He must not lie down
in any meadow or field of corn.

Fourth, as be walks on the roads, he shall
take great care not to step on any people or

12
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their horses. Also, he will not take anyone in
his hands unless that person agrees to it.

Fifth, be will carry a messenger and horse
in bis pocket for emergency messages.

Sixth, he will belp us against our enemies
on the Island of Blefuscu.

Also, the Man-Mountain shall have a
sufficient daily allowance of meat and drink.
The amount he requires would be enough food
and drink for 1,728 of our people.

The strange agreement was not exactly what I
had wanted. Still, I was happy to have my freedom.
When I agreed to it, my chains were unlocked
immediately.

My first wish was to see the capital city and the
Emperor’s palace. By lying down on my side, I was
able to look into the tiny windows of the palace.
The rooms were splendid indeed. The Empress
smiled at me. She held her tiny hand out the
window for me to kiss.

About two weeks after I had been given my
freedom, I had a most interesting visitor. It was
Reldresal, one of the Emperor’s men. He told me
about the long war between Lilliput and Blefuscu.
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This is how the trouble began: The Lilliputians
had always broken their eggs at the larger end
before eating them. But the Emperor’s grandfather
had an accident that changed this custom. When
he was a boy, he broke an egg at the larger end
and cut his finger. His father, the Emperor, made a
law that from then on all eggs must be broken at
the small end. Many Lilliputians hated the law. They
rebelled against the Emperor. Eleven thousand of
the Big Endians stubbornly refused to break their
eggs at the small end. They were put to death by
the Small Endians.

The people of Blefuscu were constantly stirring
up the Big Endian rebels. When Big Endians fled
to Blefuscu, they were welcomed by the Emperor.
The two kingdoms had been warring over the
question of how eggs should be broken ever since
then—for six and thirty moons.

Reldresal had news from Blefuscu. He said they
were planning to set a fleet of ships against Lilliput
very soon. When the Emperor of Lilliput asked for
my help, I agreed to do what I could.

I walked out to the northeast side of Lilliput.
Through my glass, I could see the island of
Blefuscu. Their fleet of ships was in the harbor, no
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more than 800 yards away. I asked the Emperor for
a large number of cables and bars of iron. The cable
was the thickness of heavy thread. The iron bars
were about the size of knitting needles. I attached
the threads to the bars and twisted the ends of the
bars into hooks.

Then I waded into the water. I swam about 30
yards until my feet could touch the bottom again.
It took me less than half an hour to reach Blefuscu’s
harbor. When I waded up to their ships, the enemy
was terrified. They jumped from their ships into
the water.

I fastened my hooks to the prow of each ship
and tied all the cables together. While I was at work,
the enemy on shore shot several thousand arrows
at my hands and face. My greatest worry was for
my eyes. It was a good thing that T had remembered
to bring my glasses with me. I put them on before
any of their arrows could blind me.

I then cut loose the anchors of the ships and
pulled them away with ease. Seeing this, the enemy
set up a great cry of grief. I waded farther into the
water until I was sure I was out of danger. Then I
stopped and plucked the arrows out of my hands
and face. I had to wait until the tide went back out
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again before wading back toward Lilliput.

The Emperor and his men were waiting
anxiously for me at the port of Lilliput. When the
Emperor saw that I had captured most of the enemy
fleet, he was delighted. As a reward, he gave me
the title of Nardac on the spot. This was the
highest title of honor in the land.

Unfortunately, however, capturing the enemy
fleet was not enough for the Emperor. The truth
was that he wanted to rule Blefuscu himself. His
plan was to kill all the Big Endian exiles. Then he
wanted to force everyone to break their eggs at the
smaller end whether they wanted to or not. But I
could never take part in bringing a free and brave
people into slavery—so I refused to help him.

The Emperor could not forgive me for this. He
and some of his men began to plot against me.
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3 Home to
England

I had been planning a visit to the Emperor of
Blefuscu when I heard about the plot against me
in Lilliput. A nobleman visited me in secret one
night. He told me I would soon be accused of
treason by the Emperor of Lilliput.

First of all, I had refused to help the Emperor
conquer Blefuscu. Second, I had refused to kill the
Big Endian exiles. Also, I would not kill anyone on
Blefuscu who refused to become a Small Endian.

It was also charged that my planned visit to
Blefuscu was actually a secret plot. They thought I
was going there to help the Emperor of Blefuscu
mount an attack on Lilliput.

My secret visitor said that many of the
Emperor’s men wanted me killed. Some wanted to
set fire to my house at night. A general suggested
that 20,000 of his men should shoot me with
poisoned arrows. Another suggestion was to have
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my servants put poisonous juice on my shirts and
sheets. As the poison entered my body, it would
make me tear my own flesh. I would die a terrible
death indeed.

But, my visitor said, the Emperor was merciful.
He said he would not have me put to death, but
only blinded. This would not take away my
strength, and I would still be useful to the kingdom.

When the visiting nobleman finally said
goodbye, I was left with many doubts and fears.
Perhaps because of my education, I am not a good
judge of such things. But I could not see any mercy
in being blinded.

I thought of fighting. I could easily destroy the
Emperor’s city by throwing stones at it. But I soon
rejected that plan. I remembered my promises to
the Emperor, and I also thought about the title of
Nardac that he had given me.

At last T decided to leave Lilliput and visit the
Emperor of Blefuscu. I waded and swam across to
the island. The Emperor and Empress there greeted
me kindly. They were very generous, though I
missed having a house and bed.

Three days after my arrival, I saw a very large
overturned boat floating near the shore. I asked
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the Emperor to lend me 20 of his tallest ships.
Though he had lost most of his fleet, he still had
many ships. I was also given 3,000 sailors to help
me and plenty of rope. I swam out and tied the
ropes to the front of the boat. Then the Blefuscu
sailors pulled the boat and I pushed it from behind.
Finally, we got it back to the island.

I shall not trouble the reader with the many
difficulties I had making paddles. But soon the big
boat was ready to use.

About this time the Emperor of Blefuscu
received a message from Lilliput. The message was
a direct order from the Emperor. It said that I must
be tied hand and foot and sent back to Lilliput.
There, I would be punished as a traitor.

The Emperor of Blefuscu replied that he could
not bind me. Even though I had captured his fleet,
I had done much to make peace between Blefuscu
and Lilliput. He also went on to say that both
kingdoms would soon be free of worry. I had found
a huge boat and would be leaving soon.

Privately, the Emperor of Blefuscu offered to
protect me if I would serve him. But I had decided
to no longer put my trust in rulers. Also, I did not
want to be an object of disagreement between the
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two kingdoms. Since fortune had given me a boat,
I would set out to sea at once.

With the Emperor’s generous help, I loaded the
boat with food. I took the meat of 100 oxen and
300 sheep. I had a large amount of bread and drink
as well. I also took with me six live cows and bulls
and six ewes and rams. My plan was to take them
to my own country and breed them.

I finally left Blefuscu on the 24th of September,
1701. On my second day at sea I saw a ship. I came
toward her until she saw me and fired a gun. But
then she let go her sails and allowed me to catch
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up to her. My heart leaped when I saw the English
flag on her mast! I put my cows and sheep in my
coat pockets and climbed onboard.

The captain was very kind to me. He asked me
what place I came from and where I was going.
When I told him, he thought the dangers I had been
in had disturbed my head. Then I took the cattle
and sheep out of my pocket. He was astonished by
their small size. After that, he believed my story.

I shall not trouble the reader with the story of
the voyage. For the most part, it was fine. In fact, I
had only one stroke of bad luck. The rats on board
carried away one of my sheep. I found her bones
buried in a hole, picked clean. But the rest of my
animals got home safely.

Once I was back in England, I made a great deal
of money showing my animals to persons of quality.
Before I began my second trip, I prospered again
by selling them for 600 pounds.

As it happened, however, I stayed in England
only two months with my wife, my daughter Betty,
and my son Johnny. My great desire to see foreign
countries would let me stay no longer. I left 1,500
pounds with my wife, and bought her a good house.

Knowing that my family was well taken care of,
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I then said goodbye. There were tears on both
sides. This time I set sail on board a ship called the
Adventure. We were bound for Surat.
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4 The Land
of the Giants

I departed from England on June 20, 1702. We
had a good voyage until we passed the Straits of
Madagascar. There we were suddenly blown off
course by strong winds. When the winds stopped,
we were carried even farther by 2 monsoon.

Finally the weather cleared. But by then even
the most experienced sailor on board could not tell
where we were. We had enough food, but we were
in great need of water.

Eventually we spotted land. We dropped anchor
and went on shore in the long boat. I was walking
alone, searching for water on the shore, when I saw
the long boat leaving. The sailors seemed to be
rowing as fast as they could back toward the ship.
I was about to call out to them when I saw a giant
man coming after them through the water! Each of
his steps covered a huge distance, but the men in
the boat were well ahead of him. Also, the water
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there was full of sharp, pointed rocks.

I was very frightened. I did not wait to see if
the men in the long boat escaped the monster. I
ran as fast as I could in the other direction. For a
long time I followed a narrow dirt path until I came
to a field of corn. The towering plants there rose
at least 40 feet in the air!

A group of workers were in the field. These men
were as huge as the fellow who went after our boat.
I saw that it was harvest time, and they were cutting
the corn. I heard them calling to each other in
voices like thunder. I could not understand their
language. I kept away from them as well as I could.
Then I found myself blocked by a stack of corn
plants laid out on the ground. I could not get over
this solid wall of corn; I was trapped. The workers
were coming closer and closer, cutting the corn.

I was so frightened and exhausted I fell to the
ground. I was sure it was the end of me. I thought
of my poor widow and fatherless children. How
foolish T had been to go on another voyage!

One of the workers was very close. With his next
step I knew I would be squashed! I screamed as
loudly as fear could make me. The huge man
stopped and looked around. At last he glanced
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down and saw me. He picked me up and held me. I
was 00 feet above the ground! I decided not to
struggle for fear of the long drop if I should slip
through his fingers.

After studying me for a few minutes, he put me
gently in his coat pocket and took me to his master,
a farmer. The man called his workers around him
and gently put me on the ground. I bowed low.
Then, as loudly as I could, I spoke some friendly
words in several languages. But it was clear that
they did not understand me.

The farmer wrapped me carefully in his
handkerchief and took me to his house. There he
called out to his wife and showed me to her. She
screamed and jumped back. It was just the way
women in England act when they see a toad or a
spider! But she became used to me very quickly.

It was about noon, and a servant brought in
dinner. It was an enormous dish of meat, about 24
feet in diameter. The family sat at the table. In all,
there were six of them—the farmer and his wife,
three children, and a grandmother.

The wife put out a bit of meat and bread for
me. I made a low bow, took out my knife and fork,
and began to eat. This delighted everyone.
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As I was walking toward the farmer to get more
food, the youngest boy grabbed me. He held me
high in the air. But his father snatched me from
the boy’s rough hands. He gave the boy a box in
the ears that would have knocked down a horse.
Then he ordered his son to leave the table.

I was afraid the boy might want to get even with
me later. So I fell on my knees and pointed to the
boy. I made signs to show that he should be
forgiven. Seeming to understand, the father let his
son come back to the table. I went over to the lad
and tenderly kissed his hand. Then the father took
his son’s hand in his and showed him how to stroke
me gently with it.

In the middle of dinner, I heard a loud humming
noise. The wife’s cat had jumped into her lap and
was purring. I was afraid of the animal—which
seemed to be three times larger than an ox! But
the cat took no notice of me.

When dinner was over, I was very tired. Noticing
this, the farmer’s wife put me on her bed. I slept
for about two hours, dreaming of my family. When
I woke, I felt very sad. I was alone in the huge room,
on a bed about 20 yards wide.

As I lay there wondering what to do next, two
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rats crawled up on the bed. They ran toward me. I
drew my sword just as they attacked me on both
sides. One of them held his front feet to my collar,
but I ripped up his belly before he could hurt me.
He fell dead at my feet. The other rat turned to
run away. But I gave him a slashing wound in the
back before he escaped.

The farmer’s wife came in the bedroom and saw
that I was all bloody. She ran up and took me up in
her hand. But I pointed to the dead rat and made
other signs to tell her that I was not hurt. She was
very happy to see I had not been injured.

The farmer had a daughter, nine years old. That
night, she made up a comfortable doll’s cradle for
me to sleep in. It was put on a hanging shelf to
keep me away from the rats. This was my bed all
the time I stayed with the farmer’s family.

This daughter was handy with a needle. While
I was there, she sewed seven shirts for me and
made it her business to wash them regularly. She
also taught me their language. I called her my
Glumdalclitch, or “little nurse.”

Somehow the news spread that the farmer had
found a strange little animal who could walk and
talk. A neighbor suggested to the farmer that he
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could make some money by putting me on display.
He decided to do it on market day.

When market day arrived, I was taken to an inn
at a nearby town. There I was placed on a table so
everyone could see me. A good price was charged
for tickets to the show. I was grateful for the
hospitality of the farmer and his family. So I walked
about and answered questions that Glumdalclitch
asked me. I showed my sword in some fencing
exercises and drank to everyone’s health. Only 30
people were allowed to see me at a time, so I was
shown over and over again that day. When it was
over I was half-dead from exhaustion.

While I was being shown off, the farmer let no
one touch me except Glumdalclitch. Benches were
set around the table to keep anyone from coming
too close. One gawking boy, however, aimed a
hazelnut at me, which almost hit my head. It would
have certainly knocked out my brains if it had
struck me. That hazelnut was as large as a pumpkin!
I was happy to see that the boy was beaten and
turned out of the room.

The next market day the farmer showed me
until T could hardly stand. T was making so much
money for him, he decided to take me on a tour of
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the largest cities in the kingdom. As we traveled
around, Glumdalclitch carried me on a horse. I sat
in a special box she had lined with soft cloth.

The more money I made for the farmer, the
more often he put me on display. For a long time
we traveled from city to city. Finally we arrived at
Lorbrulgrud, where the king and queen lived. By
then I was almost a skeleton. The farmer could see
how weak I was. Thinking that I would probably
die soon, he was determined to exhibit me as often
as possible before that happened.
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5 In the
Royal Court

While the farmer was planning another long
tour, the queen ordered him to bring me to her.
Somehow she had gotten word of the strange little
man who was visiting her kingdom. She had made
up her mind to see my beauty, good behavior, and
good sense for herself.

When I was brought to meet her, the queen was
delighted with me. In fact she purchased me from
the farmer for 1,000 pieces of gold. When I asked
if Glumdalclitch might stay with me as my nurse,
the queen readily agreed. The young girl could not
hide her joy.

The queen commanded her cabinetmaker to
make me a bedroom to suit my size. In three weeks,
he finished it. The room was 16 feet square, with
windows, a door, and two closets. It was quilted
on all sides so I would not be accidentally jolted
around or injured. Later I was given a smaller
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box for traveling. This one was about 12 feet
square. It was fitted with rings that attached to a
servant’s belt.

Before long the queen became so fond of my
company that she would not dine without me. She
had a special table made that sat on top of hers,
along with a chair for me to sit on. The queen had
a weak stomach and could only eat a little at a time.
On most days, she would daintily crunch the wing
of a lark between her teeth—though it was nine
times as large as a turkey!

The king also enjoyed long talks with me. He
asked me all about the customs and government
in Europe. I answered him as best I could. But
perhaps I said too much about our politics, our
wars, and our arguments over religion. For what I
told him gave him a fit of laughter. To him, we
seemed like fierce little insects. He said that we
copied humans by making little nests we called
houses and clustering them in cities. There in our
little nests we loved and fought, argued and
cheated, and betrayed each other. Such talk made
my face turn red. But I did not argue with the king.

Nothing, however, made me angrier than the
queen’s dwarf. He was the smallest person in that
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country—something less than 30 feet tall. When he
discovered a person smaller than himself, he
became very insolent. To defend myself I would
match his insults and challenge him to wrestle. One
day at dinner he picked me up and let me drop
into a large silver bowl of cream. If T had not been
a good swimmer it might have gone very hard for
me. The only damage, though, was to my clothes.

The queen was furious. She had the dwarf
whipped, and forced him to drink the cream.
Eventually, the queen gave the dwarf as a gift to a
woman of quality. But before he left, the dwarf
made a great deal of mischief for me.

Another time at the table, the dwarf watched
while the queen knocked the marrow out of a bone.
Then, when no one was looking, he squeezed my
legs together and stuffed me into the bone. No one
noticed what had happened. I was stuck in there
for some time. No doubt I looked quite ridiculous!

The queen sometimes made fun of me because
I was so often afraid. She asked if the people of my
country were as cowardly as myself. My fear of flies
amused her. But when I sat at dinner, they buzzed
about my ears—and they were as large as larks!
Sometimes, to frighten me, the dwarf would let
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loose several flies in front of my nose. My solution
was to cut them to pieces with my knife.

Another time I was eating a sweet cake when I
was attacked by wasps. I was in terror of their
stings, but I had the courage to draw my sword and
fight. T killed four of them, though the rest got
away. I removed their stingers, which I kept and
brought back to England with me.

I could have lived happily in that country if my
smallness had not put me in the way of danger so
often. One day while the dwarf was still with us, he
followed me into the garden. I was standing under
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an apple tree when he shook it—right over my
head! A dozen apples, each one as large as a barrel,
came falling down around my ears! One glanced
off my back. Another knocked me flat on my face.
But I received no other hurt from the dwarf.

Another day, a sudden shower of hailstones
struck me to the ground. I was so banged and
bruised I could not get out of bed for 10 days.

A more dangerous accident happened when the
gardener’s dog picked me up in his teeth. I was
naturally terrified. But by good fortune, the dog
had been well taught. He very gently brought me
to his master. My clothes were not even torn.

The queen had often heard me speak of my
voyages at sea. She decided that a boat might be
good entertainment for me. She had a workman
make me a boat along with a trough to sail it in. I
would row the boat, or the queen and her ladies
would give me a gale with their fans.

Once, however, a frog got into the trough and
climbed onto my boat. It hopped from one end to
the other, covering me with its awful slime. I
banged it with my oar until it finally leaped away.

But the greatest danger I met with in that
kingdom was from a monkey. I was in my larger
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box when he entered the room and saw me. I was
so frightened I did not think to hide under the bed.
I tried to avoid his paw, but he grabbed my coat
and dragged me out. He held me like a baby. When
I struggled to escape, however, he squeezed me
so hard I thought I had better keep still.

Then the monkey leaped up to the window,
hopped out, and climbed up to the roof. I heard
Glumdalclitch give a shriek when she saw me in
his paw. In 2 moment, the palace was in an uproar.
Servants ran for ladders. Hundreds more people
watched as the monkey sat on the edge of the
building, dangling me in his paw.

The monkey took food from his cheeks and
crammed it into my mouth. The people below
could not help laughing, and I suppose I could not
blame them. I am sure the sight was ridiculous to
everyone but me.

Several men started climbing the ladders.
Seeing that he was almost surrounded, the monkey
placed me on the edge of the building and made
his escape. So there I was—some 500 yards from
the ground! At any moment I expected to fall
forward from dizziness, or be blown down by the
wind. But finally a good-hearted lad climbed up,
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put me in his pocket, and brought me down safely.

I had almost been choked by the filthy stuff the
monkey had crammed down my throat. And I was
so weak and bruised that I had to stay in bed for
two weeks! The monkey was killed for his evil
prank. Then the king and queen gave an order that
no such animal would be kept around the palace.

For many days afterward, the king teased me
about my adventure with the monkey. I was not
amused. Every time he mentioned it, I gave him a
fierce look and took hold of my sword. I said if I
had thought of fighting, T could have given the
monkey quite 2 wound. But the king only laughed.
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6 Rescue
at Sea

The king continued to be curious about
England, and it was a pleasure to tell him about my
home. I told him more about our government and
customs. He was especially puzzled by our many
wars. He thought we must be a very quarrelsome
people—or that we had very bad neighbors!

The king was amazed when I told him our
history of the last century. To him it was nothing
but a long list of murders and plots. He said that
our history showed the worst effects of greed, lying,
cruelty, rage, madness, hate, and envy. He took me
in his hands and stroked me gently. Then he said
words I shall never forget: that we English were the
nastiest race of miniature pests that had ever
crawled on the Earth.

Of course, one must make allowances for a
king who had never been out of his own country.
His lack of knowledge was easy to understand.
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Naturally, it would make him prejudiced against
the customs of other lands!

But I could hardly bear to hear my beloved
country insulted. So I told him about one of our
country’s greatest products—gunpowder. I
described how its power could force metal balls
through iron tubes. The largest balls, called cannon
balls, could make a noise louder than thunder and
could kill a dozen men at once! Cannon balls, I
boasted, could batter walls to the ground, rip up
pavement, and tear houses to pieces. They dashed
out the brains of all who came near.

Then I made a generous offer to the king. I said
I knew how to make gunpowder. The ingredients
were cheap. With gunpowder, the king could
destroy any town or city that did not obey him. I
offered to make him some.

The king was struck with horror at my offer. He
was amazed that a little insect like me could have
such evil thoughts. Gunpowder, he said, was
invented by an enemy of mankind. If I valued my
life, I must never mention gunpowder again.

I said nothing more, but I was sorry that he let
such a chance slip by. He might have been the
master of many kingdoms!
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The king had plans for me. The ship in which I
had sailed was the first that had visited his land. If
another ship ever landed, the king had laid out
strict orders: the passengers and crew should be
brought to him immediately. He hoped to find a
female of my size and breed me. But I could not
bear the thought that my children would be kept
in cages like tame birds. I would rather have died.

The king and queen always treated me with
great kindness. But I had no dignity. I longed to
be with people who treated me as an equal. I
wanted to walk on the streets without fear of being
stepped on. And I could not forget the family I had
left behind me. Always I had the strong feeling I
would be free one day. But I had no plan or even
any real hope of leaving the country.

My escape, however, came sooner than I dared
to dream—and in a very strange manner!

I had been in this country two years when the
king and queen took me on a trip to the coast. By
the time we arrived, Glumdalclitch and I were very
tired. I had a small cold, but the poor girl was so ill
she had to stay in her room. I longed to see the
ocean. This would be my only possible route of
escape, if it should even happen.
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I asked a page to take me to the seashore.
Glumdalclitch seemed very unhappy to see me go
anywhere without her. She burst into tears. It was
as if she somehow knew that she was about to lose
me forever.

The page took me from my box for the half-hour
walk toward the seashore. But I said that I wanted
anap and ordered him to set me down. I gotinside
my box, shut the window, and fell asleep.

I can only guess that the young page wandered
off to look for birds’ eggs. He must have thought it
would be safe to leave me for a moment.

I was rudely awakened by a sudden pull at the
ring at the top of my box. Then I felt the box raised
high in the air. Out the window, I could see nothing
but clouds and sky. Over my head, I heard the
sound of flapping wings. My whole body trembled
in fear. I thought that an eagle must have my box
in his beak! I was sure he was planning to drop the
box on the rocks. Then he would pick out my body
and eat it.

In a little time I heard the noise and flutter of
many wings. The box was being tossed about like a
loose storefront sign on a windy day. I heard several
bangs against the wall. Then, suddenly, I was falling
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so fast that I almost lost my breath.

My fall was stopped by a deafening splash. To
my ears it sounded louder than the Niagara
waterfall! Everything around me was dark for a
moment, but then my box rose up to the light. I
had fallen into the sea! I guessed that the eagle had
been chased by two or three other birds and was
forced to let me drop.

I had no one to help me. How I wished I was
with my dear Glumdalclitch! Yet as sad as I was for
myself, I felt truly awful for her. I knew how she
would suffer for losing me. I also knew how
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unhappy the queen would be with her.

Fortunately my box was very well made. Water
oozed in from several corners, but the leaks were
small. Yet even if I did not drown, before long I
would surely die from cold and hunger. For four
hours, I thought about my death, fearing that every
moment would be my last.

Suddenly I heard a scraping noise on one side
of the box. Then it seemed that the box was being
pulled through the waves. I called for help as loudly
as I could—but just then the box struck something
hard. T heard a noise like a moving cable, and then
felt the box being lifted into the air. Again I called
out for help. In answer, I heard a great shout. You
cannot believe the joy I felt. It was a voice speaking
in English!

Thinking I must be aboard a ship, I called out
to ask if one of the crew could put my box in the
captain’s cabin. Some of the sailors laughed. They
thought I must be joking—or mad. It never came
into my head that I was among people of my own
size and strength!

The ship’s carpenter came and sawed a passage
in the box so I could climb out. The amazed sailors
asked me a thousand questions. I was very puzzled
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by seeing all these tiny men. After all, I had lived
among giants for two years!

The captain took me to his cabin and told me
to rest. I slept for some hours, dreaming about the
dangers I had escaped. When I awoke, I told the
captain of my journey. At first he thought my brain
must be disturbed. But I was finally able to convince
him that I was telling the truth.

When I finished my story, I showed him some
of the objects I had taken from the country of the
giants. There was a comb I had made from bits of
the king’s beard. The back of another comb was
made from a piece of the queen’s fingernail. I had
a collection of needles and pins that ranged from a
foot to half a yard long. I also had four wasp
stingers—and a gold ring from the queen’s little
finger. She had thrown it over my head like a collar.

I offered the ring to the captain, but he refused.
All he would take was a single tooth, which was
about a foot long.

When we arrived home, the English people
seemed like the most miserable little creatures I
had ever seen! I looked at everything with a sort of
wonder, trying not to laugh. The dishes seemed to
be the size of coins. A leg of pork looked like a
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scanty mouthful. I was continually amazed at the
smallness of the houses and trees, the cattle and
people. Even my own family seemed strangely tiny
to me. My own behavior was so odd that everyone
thought I had lost my wits.

It took many weeks, but my family and friends
and I finally came to a right understanding. My wife,
however, insisted that I must never go to sea again.
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7 An Island
in the Sky

I had been home only two months when my
friend Captain William Robinson came to my house.
Robinson was captain of a 300-ton ship called the
Hopewell. He invited me to be the ship’s doctor
on a two-month voyage to the East Indies.

I could not say no—for in spite of everything, I
still had a thirst for seeing the world! It took some
time to persuade my wife, but at last she agreed
that I might go. She knew that a voyage would mean
money for the family.

The Hopewell sailed for eight months, arriving
at Tonquin. While the captain waited to buy goods
there, he sent me off with some of the crew for a
short trip on another ship. I was to sell our cargo
at nearby islands and then return to Tonquin.

We had been gone only three days when a great
storm drove us away from the islands. Then, when
the storm was finally over, we were chased by two
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pirate ships! Our ship was so heavy with goods that
the pirates easily overtook us.

They came on board and tied us up. I noticed
that one of the pirates was a Dutchman. Since I
knew some Dutch words, I spoke to him. I pointed
out that our countries were neighbors and allies. I
said we were both Protestant Christians. For these
good reasons, I begged him for mercy.

But my plea only made him angry. He turned
to another pirate and spoke in Japanese.

The captain of the largest pirate ship was
Japanese. He spoke to me kindly in Dutch. I would
not be put to death, he promised.

I politely bowed to the Japanese captain. Then
I told the Dutchman something I soon regretted. I
said that I was disappointed to find less mercy in a
fellow Christian than in a heathen.

The Dutchman was furious. He talked the
pirates into punishing me. In a short while I was
set off the ship to drift alone in a canoe. They gave
me a little food and water. The rest of my crew were
divided between the pirate ships.

As I paddled off, the Dutchman shook his fist
and swore at me. But once I was some distance
from the pirates, I discovered several islands in my
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pocket-glass. In about three hours, I reached the
closest little island. The surface of the land there
was all rocky, but I found many birds’ eggs. These
I roasted for my supper.

The next day I reached another island. And from
there I went on to a third and then a fourth. On
the fifth day, I reached the last and largest island.
There were birds’ eggs here, too—but it was an
empty, barren place. It seemed impossible that I
could stay alive for long here. I walked among the
rocks, tired and terribly sad.

All at once the sun was covered—as if by an
enormous cloud. I looked up and saw a great solid
object moving along in the air. It appeared to be
about two miles long. As I watched, the object
floated lower and lower until it was almost parallel
to the hill T stood on. Now I could see that the
object was actually a floating island!

I could see people moving around on it. Again,
my natural love of life filled me with joy. In spite
of myself, T began to hope. I waved my cap and
shouted out with all the strength I had.

More and more people gathered. They called
out in clear voices in a language that sounded
something like Italian. Somehow the island was
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moved closer to me, and a chain with a seat at the
bottom was let down. I sat down on it and was
drawn up by pulleys.

When I reached the island and stepped out of
the chair, a crowd surrounded me. Never have 1
seen an odder-looking people! Their heads all
leaned left or right. One of their eyes turned
inward, the other up to the sky. Their clothes were
decorated with suns, moons, and stars, fiddles,
flutes, harps, trumpets, and other instruments!

Sometimes I saw a servant gently hitting one of
the people with a bladder fastened to a short stick.
Later, I learned that these people are often lost in
deep thought. It was their custom to hire servants
to hit them from time to time—to help them
remember to speak or listen.

I was led to the royal palace. There, the king
sat on his throne. Persons of quality flanked him
on each side. Two servants were told to wait on
me, and quickly brought me dinner. There was
mutton cut into a triangle and beef cut into a
rhomboid. We also had ducks in the form of fiddles,
sausages molded like flutes, and veal chops shaped
like harps. Even the bread was cut into cones,
cylinders, and other mathematical figures.
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After dinner, a person was sent to teach me
their language. With the help of my good memory,
I learned many words in a few days. In a month, I
could speak their language fairly well.

The king let me explore the island, which was
called Laputa, in the company of my teacher. I
learned that there was a large magnet in the center
of the island. The island was moved by pointing its
positive or negative pole in the direction of a
neighboring island.

If any town on the mainland rebelled, the king
had two ways to get it back under control. The first
was to float Laputa over the town, so sun and rain
could not touch it. The people on Laputa could also
throw down a shower of stones. But if a town still
rebelled, he had a plan. He could let Laputa drop
down upon it, crushing houses and men.

The king, however, had never ordered such a
terrible action. For if the town had any large rocks
or towers, their sharp points and edges could easily
damage the bottom of the island.

Once the city of Lindalino rebelled. The
townspeople had built four towers of rock and set
magnets in them. When the floating island came
down to crush Lindalino, it was nearly captured.
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After this, the king was forced to let the people in
that rebellious city do as they liked.

I was well treated on Laputa—but I could never
have been happy there. The people there had no
curiosity for any subject but mathematics and
music. They knew far more about these subjects
than I did, so they thought very little of me.

For my part, I was tired of them and very much
wished to leave.
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3 Touring the
Academy

I took polite leave of the king of Laputa, and he
graciously set me down on the island of Balnibarbi.
There, my guide was a lord named Munodi. My
heart fell as he showed me around the island. T had
never seen such poor barren farms, such badly built
houses, or such desperately poor people!

When we came to Munodi’s own land, however,
all was beautiful. There were neatly built farmer’s
houses, fine fields of corn, lush vineyards, and
meadows. Munodi sighed. He said that people on
Balnibarbi made fun of him because he managed
his land so poorly!

He explained that some 40 years ago a group of
Balnibarbi’s inventors had visited Laputa. They
returned with many wonderful plans for Balnibarbi.
The only problem was that none of these plans had
worked. So the country lay in waste. The houses
were in ruins and the people were without food or
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clothes. As for Munodi, he had no spirit for the new
ideas. So he had stuck to the proven methods of
his ancestors.

Munodi had tried one new project, however.
That was to build a mill where the water would run
both uphill and downhill. Unfortunately, the plan
was a failure.

A few days later, we left Munodi’s home and
traveled back to town. There I was allowed to visit the
grand Academy—where wonderful ideas were being
developed! A guide took me through many different
rooms and showed me the inventors’ projects.

The first man I met had soot all over his hands
and face. His clothes were scorched and singed. I
learned that his project had been to extract
sunbeams from cucumbers. He had been working
on it for eight years. In another eight years he was
sure that he would succeed.

Next we met 2 man who was trying to make ice
into gunpowder.

Yet another man we visited seemed to be a
clever architect indeed. He had an amazing plan
for building houses from the roof down. This
method, he pointed out, was already being used
successfully by bees and spiders!
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In another room, a man had found a method of
using hogs to prepare the ground for planting. This
would save the expense of plows, cattle, and human
labor. The method was this: In an acre of ground
you bury acorns, dates, and other vegetables that
the pigs are fond of. Then you let 600 pigs into the
field. In a few days, the field will be rooted up and
fit for planting seed.

I went into another room where the walls and
ceiling were hung all over with cobwebs. The artist
at work there warned me not to disturb the webs.
He told me it was a terrible waste to use silkworms
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to make cloth. After all, we had plenty of insects
here at home. His plan was to use spiders instead
of silkworms. He showed me some beautifully
colored flies. Once the spiders ate the flies, they
would make wonderfully colored webs.

Then I found myself suffering a small fit of colic,
so my guide led me to a great doctor. His cure for
this ailment was to blow air into the patient’s body
with bellows. I saw him try the experiment on a
dog—who died on the spot—so I politely refused
this treatment. When we left, the doctor was trying
to bring the dog back to life with the same method!

I then visited rooms where different learning
methods were being tested. One teacher mixed
words from different languages together and
collected them into sentences. Another taught
mathematics by writing problems on wafers. The
students were supposed to eat the wafers on an
empty stomach. That way, the problem would be
digested and soon make its way to the brain. But
the students found that the wafers made them sick.
They spit them out before they could do any good.

Last of all, I visited the teachers of politics.
These foolish people seemed to have completely
lost their wits. They felt their kings should give
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power to men who were wise, good, and intelligent!

But not all of the teachers in Balnibarbi were
fools. One of them had a plan to cure the weak
memories of rulers. This would be accomplished
by tweaking their noses, kicking their bellies,
stepping on their corns, and running pins into the
seat of their pants!

I found nothing in this country that made me
want to stay. I began to think of returning to
England.
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From
9 Glubbdubdrib
to Luggnagg

I made plans to sail toward home, stopping first
at the island of Luggnagg. Then I learned that no
ships would be sailing for Luggnagg for another
month. T decided to pass the time with a trip to
the little island of Glubbdubdrib.

The word Glubbdubdrib, as near as 1 can tell,
means “the island of sorcerers or magicians.” The
governor of the island is able to call up people from
the dead.

When I first entered the governor’s palace, I saw
ghosts dressed as guards standing in the hall. These
creatures made my flesh creep. As I went inside,
there were ghost-servants everywhere. Seeing my
alarm, the governor assured me that they would
do me no harm.

Then the governor ordered me to call up
persons from the dead. He said I might call up any
person I chose and ask him questions. He assured
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me that I would hear nothing but the truth. In the
lower world, he said, lying was a useless talent.

What I learned from the dead made me
disgusted. A general told me he had won a battle
only because he had been a coward. An admiral said
that he had been about to betray his fleet when
he beat his enemy by mistake! Kings of three
different countries all told me they had been strict
about one thing—never giving power to any person
who deserved it.

I learned that the world has been fooled by lying
writers. They gave the greatest glory in war to
cowards! They put villains in the highest places of
trust! They let innocent persons be put to death!

Finally, the day of departure came. I gladly took
leave of the governor of Glubbdubdrib and sailed
for Luggnagg.

Two days after I arrived, the king of Luggnagg
gave me an appointment to see him. I was let into
the throne room and ordered to get down on my
belly. Then I was made to crawl toward the king,
licking the floor. Since I was a stranger, the floor
was cleaned for me. But before a known enemy
could enter, piles of dust were thrown on the floor!
One day in Luggnagg I saw a man with his mouth
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so crammed with dust that he could not speak!

If the king wished to put one of his nobles to
death, he did so in a merciful way. The floor was
sprinkled with a certain brown powder that would
kill him within 24 hours. Just after such an event,
the servants were under strict orders to clean the
floor very carefully.

The people of Luggnagg, however, were polite
and friendly—even to strangers. I had many good
talks with people of quality. One day a gentleman
asked me if I had met any of their immortals. I said
I had not. He told me that once in a great while a
child who lived forever was born on the island.

I told him that this must be a happy nation.
Every child had a chance of being immortal!

The gentleman shook his head and then gave
me a smile of pity. He wanted to know what / would
do if I had been born immortal.

My answer was this: First I would try by all
methods possible to become rich. If I managed my
money well, I might become the richest man in the
kingdom in about 200 years. Second, I would study
arts and sciences from my earliest years. In time, I
would pass all others in learning. Last of all, I would
carefully record every action and important event
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that happened. I would write down every change
in customs, languages, fashion, diet, and
entertainment. In that way, I would be a living
treasury of knowledge.

As an immortal, I would have the pleasure of
seeing great changes. I would see small villages
become the seat of kings. I would see famous rivers
become shallow brooks. I would see the great
ocean leave one coast dry only to swallow up
another. I would witness the discovery of new
countries and see the discovery of longitude, as
well as discoveries in astronomy and medicine.

When I finished my speech, the gentleman
laughed loudly. He said that immortals were not
what I thought. They had all the bad health and
foolishness of old men. Since they could never die,
they were very unhappy. They could hardly
remember anything they had learned in their youth
or middle age. Since language is always changing,
any immortal over 200 years old could not
understand a word that was said. They had to live
like foreigners in their own country.

When I finally met some of these immortals,
they were the saddest sight I ever saw. No one
could invent a worse death than the endless lives
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of these eternally unhappy people!

The king often asked me to stay in Luggnagg
and take some kind of job. But my mind was fixed
on returning home. At last, he gave up and allowed
me to take my leave. But before I left, he gave me
a letter to show the Emperor of Japan, 44 large
pieces of gold, and a red diamond.

When I arrived in Japan, I was treated with great
respect because of the letter. The Emperor of Japan
was very kind to me. After my visit he ordered his
troops to escort me safely to a departing ship.

From Japan, I sailed to Amsterdam. Nothing
happened worth mentioning on this voyage. We
lost only three men because of sickness. A fourth
man died by falling from a mast into the sea. From
Amsterdam, I soon set sail for England.

On April 11, 1710, I landed in England. I had
been gone five years and six months. I sold the
diamond for 400 pounds. Then I went straight to
my home and found my wife and family in good
health.
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Talking Horses

I stayed in England with my wife and children
about five months. I should have been happy at
home. But I never knew when I was well off. By
the time I left, my poor wife was growing big with
child. But it was time to sail away again.

This time I had a very good offer. I would be
the captain of a ship called the Adventure.

We set off on September 7, 1710. All went well
for a while. My troubles began when several of my
crew members died of fever. I had to stop at
Barbados to get new men. But before long, the new
seamen I had hired turned the others against me.
Along with the rest of the crew, they took over the
ship. They locked me in my cabin for several weeks.

When the Adventure landed at last, the
mutineers brought me from the cabin and set me
on shore. When I asked what country it was, they
swore they did not know any more than I. Then
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they sailed away with the outgoing tide, and left
me there alone.

I walked along fields of grass and oats. After
wandering aimlessly for some time, I saw a group
of strange looking animals. Their heads and chests
were covered with hair and a stiff ridge of hair was
growing down their backs. The rest of their bodies
were bare. In all my travels, I had never seen such
unpleasant looking creatures.

I walked on, but one of the animals came up to
me. The ugly thing lifted its paw. I drew my sword
and gave him a blow with the side of the blade.
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The beast roared, and a herd of at least 40 of
them came running. I backed up to a tree and
fought them off as best I could.

Then suddenly, they all ran away as if in fear. A
gray horse and a brown one walked softly up to
me. They looked at me with wonder. I reached out
and stroked the gray’s neck, but this gesture
seemed to offend him.

The two horses neighed in various tones and
syllables as if they were talking to one another. I
thought I heard the word Yahoo repeated several
times. At last the gray signaled that I should follow
him. Wondering who might be the master of these
amazing beasts, I was glad to do so. But I soon
learned that the horses were the masters!

After a moment, we came to a long wooden
building with a straw-covered roof. Five horses
were gathered inside a large room.

The horses were sitting down, which amazed
me—but I was even more amazed to see that they
seemed to be talking to one another!

The gray led me to another room. There, a
good-looking mare, accompanied by a colt and a
foal, sat on mats of straw. The mare looked at me
with scorn and neighed. Once more I thought I
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heard them say the word Yahoo.

The gray horse then led me out to a building
far from the house. Inside were three of the ugly
beasts I had met before, tied by a rope to a beam.
They were feeding on roots and fleshy hunks of
some animal, which they held in their claws.

The gray called a servant, a sorrel nag, to untie
one of the beasts. The beast and I were brought
close together and the two horses compared us.
Again I heard the word Yahoo. 1 was filled with
surprise and horror to realize that this strange
looking animal had a perfect human figure! Only
the extra hair and long nails made us different.

Of course—because of my clothes—the horses
could not see how alike our bodies were. The sorrel
nag offered me a root, which he held between his
hoof and pastern. I gave it back as politely as I
could. He then offered me a piece of animal flesh.
It smelled so rotten I had to turn away from it. He
then offered me hay and oats, but I shook my head.

It seemed that I might starve in this country!
Then I saw a cow, and I made signs that I might
milk her. This had its effect. The gray led me to a
room where there was a good, clean store of milk.
The mare’s servant gave me a large bowl, and I
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drank and drank until I had had my fill.

While the family was at dinner, I learned the
words for oats, milk, fire, water, and some other
things. After dinner I made a sort of oat cake. The
food was very plain—but it kept me healthy for the
three years I stayed there. I also ate herbs and
salads. Sometimes I caught a rabbit or bird as well.

The gray horse, who was master of the house,
was very curious about me. He spent a great deal
of time teaching me his language so I could tell him
about myself. In a few months, I was able to explain
how I came to his country.

I told him I had come over the sea from a distant
place. I said that I had traveled in a vessel made
from trees. It was hard for him to understand me.
He said I must be mistaken—or that I was saying a
thing which was not. (In their language, they have
no word for lying.) He thought it was impossible
that there was a country beyond the sea. Also, he
could not believe that any beasts knew how to move
a wooden vessel upon water.

Many Huoyhnhnms—for that was the name of
horses in that place—came to visit my master. They,
too, were very curious about me. After studying me
carefully, they decided I was not really a Yahoo—
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because of the coverings on my body.

One morning, however, the sorrel nag saw me
without clothes when I was still asleep. He ran to
the master, shaking his head in confusion.

I explained to the master that it was the custom
of my people to wear outer layers of cloth. We
covered ourselves against the weather, I told him,
and also for the sake of decency. He did not
understand this. He wondered why we would cover
the bodies that nature had given us. He examined
my pieces of clothing one by one, and then he
looked at me closely. He said I would be a perfect
Yahoo—except that I was hairless in certain parts,
and that my skin was very white.

It upset me to be compared to such an animal.
I asked him not to call me a Yahoo anymore. And I
begged him to keep it a secret that the coverings
on my body could be removed.
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11 The Truth
About Yahoos

In another talk with the gray horse, I told him
that Yahoos were the masters in my country. I
explained that the Houyhnhnms there were called
horses. But I made sure to tell him that servants
waited on them, rubbing their skins, serving their
food, and making their beds.

I begged my master to excuse me from telling
him more. But he insisted on knowing all T could
tell him. So I told him that horses were put to all
kinds of hard work until they died. I described
saddles and bridles and told him how English
people rode on their horses’ backs.

My master was shocked. He wondered how we
dared to get on a Houyhnhnm'’s back! He was sure
the lowest servant in his house would be able to
shake off the strongest Yahoo. I said that our horses
were trained from an early age to obey us. If they
did not learn and obey, they were beaten.

67



GuULLIVER'S TRAVELS

This made my master very angry. He said that
Yahoos alone must be gifted with reason in my
country—for reason will always win over strength.
Otherwise, the Houyhnhnms would certainly have
overpowered such weak creatures as the Yahoos.

I described some of the history of England for
my master, including tales of our many wars. He
asked me why countries went to war with one
another. I tried to explain that there were many
reasons. Sometimes rulers wanted more land or
more people to govern. A country might declare
war because of different beliefs about religion. Or
sometimes a country might declare war only
because the enemy was too strong—or only because
the enemy was too weak!

I said that English soldiers commanded a great
deal of honor. This is because they are hired to kill
as many of their own kind of creatures as they can.

My master was shocked. He said it was a good
thing that nature did not give us long teeth or
claws. Otherwise we might truly hurt one another.

I smiled at this. Then I told him about cannons,
pistols, swords, and other weapons. I began to give
him even more details of war and fighting—until
he asked me to stop.
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He said that although he despised the Yahoos
of his country, he realized that their minds had no
reason. They could not be blamed for their bad
qualities. But he could scarcely believe that the
Yahoos in my country were truly capable of reasoning.
Otherwise, they would not act so savagely.

I then told my master about the use of money
in my country. I said that when a Yahoo had a great
store of money, he might buy whatever he wished.
He could get the finest clothing. He could have the
best houses and the greatest areas of fine land. He
could enjoy the most costly meat and drink. Also,
a wealthy man could have his choice of all the most
beautiful females.

Yahoos felt they could never have enough
money, yet only a few Yahoos were rich. Most
people were forced to live miserably—working long
hours every day for very little money. The rich
Yahoos lived off the work of the poor.

My master said that all animals had a right to
their share of what the earth provided. He wanted
to know what these costly foods were, and why we
wanted them. I told him of many different sorts of
meats, and ways of fixing them. I described how
we sent vessels to every part of the world for certain

69



GuULLIVER'S TRAVELS

kinds of food and drink. We did not send away our
vessels because of basic needs like water. Instead
we wanted special liquids that made us merry and
put us out of our senses. As something of a little
joke, Itold my master that the whole globe of the
earth must be gone around three times before a
Yahoo of quality could get her breakfast!

My master said it must be a miserable country
that could not provide enough food for its people.
I replied that England could produce three times
the food its people needed. The reason we sent
away our vessels was to feed the luxury and vanity
of the rich. Many of our people, however, had to
make a living by begging, robbing, stealing,
gambling, or lying.

My master had heard me speak of nobles, and
now he thought that I must be such a person. After
all, T was much cleaner and more pleasing to look
at than his country’s Yahoos. I was honored, but I
told him my birth was of the lower sort. Noblemen
in my country were bred into luxury and laziness.
It is common for English noblemen to have weak,
sickly bodies and pale skin. A healthy look is
scorned by persons of quality.

It was hard for my fair-minded master to
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understand the evils of Yahoos. The Houyhnhnms
were such good creatures themselves, I decided
that T wanted to be just like them.

I was very contented in this country. Unlike
England, here there were no pickpockets, house-
breakers, lawyers, idiots, politicians, or murderers.

Being so long with the Houyhnhnms, I picked
up their habits of walking and talking. Even now
my friends in England tell me that I sometimes trot
like a horse.
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1 2 A Sad

Farewell

I felt I was settled in this life. But one morning,
my master sent for me much earlier than usual. He
had been at a meeting with his fellow Houyhnhnms,
and he had some bad news.

The Houyhnhnms knew that I was an unusually
smart Yahoo. For that reason, some of them had
become afraid that I would lead the other Yahoos
against them and destroy their cattle.

The Houyhnhnms wanted my master to treat me
like the other Yahoos—to tie me up. If he chose
not to do this, he had promised to command me
to swim back to my own country.

I was struck with a sharp stab of grief at my
master’s words. I felt I would rather die than return
to the evil world of Yahoos.

My master was sad, too. He said that, for his
part, he would have been happy to keep me with
him as long as I lived. He offered to let me stay
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two more months, so that I would have time to
build a boat. The sorrel nag would help me.

So I built a sort of canoe, covered with the skins
of dead Yahoos. The sails were made of skin also.
Then, with a grieving heart, I said goodbye to my
master. He gave me his hoof to Kiss.

I set sail on a February morning. My master, his
friends, and the sorrel nag watched from the shore
until T was almost out of sight.

My plan was to find some small island and live
there alone. All I wanted now was to enjoy my own
thoughts, and to remember the goodness of the
Houyhnhnms.

After many hours, I reached the coast of New-
Holland. For three days I was alone there, living
on shellfish. Fortunately, I soon found a creek with
fresh water. Beyond that, I dared not explore too
far, for I was unarmed.

On the fourth day, I accidentally did wander too
far. I came upon 20 or 30 natives—every one of
them stark naked—on a hill above me. They were
men, women, and children gathered around a fire.
When one of them saw me, I ran, and they came
after me. I reached the canoe and shoved off. But
before I could get far enough out to sea, one of
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them pulled out a bow and shot an arrow. It
wounded me deeply on the inside of my left knee.
(I shall carry the mark to my grave.)

I was at a loss about what to do. I headed my
boat north and then saw the sail of a ship. I sat
there thinking for a while and then turned my boat
around. I would rather trust myself to savages than
European Yahoos. I drew my canoe as close as I
could to the shore. Then I hid myself behind a huge
stone near a creek.

The ship sailed close to the creek, and a boat
was sent to get fresh water. By the time I saw the
boat, however, it was too late. The sailors found
me hiding flat on my face behind the stone!

Speaking to me in Portuguese, the men told me
to get up. I tried to explain to them that I was only
a poor Yahoo, banished from the Houyhnhnms. I
begged them to leave me alone.

They thought I was very strange. They forced
me to come with them to see the ship’s captain.
His name was Pedro de Mendez. He was a very
polite and generous person. At first he did not
believe my story. But after trying to trip me up in
some part of it, he decided that it must be true.

I sailed with them. When we arrived at Lisbon,
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he put me on a ship for England. Then the good
Captain de Mendez took kind leave of me, and lent
me 20 pounds.

On the December 5, 1715, I arrived home. My
family received me with great surprise and joy. But
I must admit that the sight of them filled me with
hate and disgust.

As soon as I entered the house, my wife took
me in her arms and kissed me. I had not been used
to the touch of that awful animal for years. I fell
into a faint for almost an hour.

At the time I am writing, it is five years since
my return to England. For the first year, I could
not stand to have my wife or children near me. I
could not bear even the smell of them.

The first money I 1aid out was to buy two horses.
I keep them in a good stable, and they have never
known saddle or bridle. I talk with them at least
four hours a day. They understand me fairly well.

So, gentle reader, I have given you a history of
my travels for 16 years. All of it is true. I wish every
traveler would swear to tell the truth before
beginning to write of his travels.

Some people told me that I should have advised
the government of the new lands I had found. After
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all, whenever new lands are discovered by an
Englishman, they belong to the King of England.
But I doubt such countries as I have seen could be
conquered very easily.

The Lilliputians are hardly worth sending out a
fleet of costly warships. And I doubt it would be
safe to attack the land of the giants. As for Laputa,
I don’t believe the English army would be
comfortable with a floating island over their heads.

The Houyhnhnms, however, would be easy to
fight. They are too reasonable and gentle to be
warlike. They would not understand our intentions.
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But instead of our army conquering them, I wish a
number of them would come to Europe and teach
us honesty, truth, and justice.

Here I must take leave of you, my readers, and
return to my own home. Last week, I began to let
my wife eat dinner with me. The smell of Yahoos
still bothers me, however. That is why I always keep
my nose stopped up with rue or tobacco.

I believe that, in time, Yahoos will not upset
me so much. I am not in the least upset by a lawyer,
a pickpocket, a fool, or a politician. But if T see
someone who is full of pride, I lose my patience.
And so, if any of you has even a bit of pride, I beg
you—stay out of my sight.
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